
CC Minutes 5‐21‐13 

City of Washington Terrace 1 

_________________________________________________ 2 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 3 

held on May 21, 2013 4 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 5 

County of Weber, State of Utah 6 

 7 

                      8 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT FOR TERRACE DAYS 9 
Mayor Mark C. Allen- Absent 10 

Council Member Mary Johnston 11 

Council Member Blair Brown 12 

Council Member Robert Jensen 13 

Council Member Scott Monsen – Absent 14 

Council Member Val Shupe 15 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 16 

Recreation Director Aaron Solomon 17 

Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 18 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 19 

City Treasurer Laura Gamon 20 

 21 

Others Present 22 
None  23 

 24 
1.     TERRACE DAY’S PLANNING MEETING                5:30 P.M. 25 
Solomon briefed Council on the events scheduled for Terrace Days. Solomon stated that he will 26 

head the parade to keep the pace and close the gaps between floats. Solomon stated that he has 27 

been unable to contact Sister Stephanie for Grand Marshall, but will try to contact her this week. 28 

Council Member Brown suggested that Council use four-wheelers again in the parade. It was 29 

decided that the four-wheelers will be used again pending that there are enough for everyone. 30 

Solomon stated that he has gotten quite a few commitments for floats for the parade and will 31 

contact the Shriners.  He stated that participants from the sports teams will also be in the parade. 32 

Solomon stated that Coke will be donating a minimum of $500.00 and will have a Coke truck at 33 

the event.  Solomon stated that the rock wall will be featured this year.  Solomon stated that he 34 

pushed the dog race/show back in order to accommodate Council and staff to make it to the park 35 

in time.  36 

Solomon stated that the band will be bringing generators and sound equipment. Harris stated that 37 

the city is in the process of reconfiguring the sprinkler heads at the park and the grass should be 38 

green by the time of the event. 39 

Solomon stated that posters will be hung around the city, an article will be sent to the Standard 40 

Examiner, and an article will be featured in the city newsletter. 41 

 42 

 43 

 44 

 45 

                         46 



CC Minutes 5‐21‐13 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT FOR WORK SESSION 47 
Mayor Mark C. Allen  48 

Council Member Mary Johnston 49 

Council Member Blair Brown 50 

Council Member Robert Jensen 51 

Council Member Scott Monsen  52 

Council Member Val Shupe 53 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 54 

Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 55 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 56 

City Treasurer Laura Gamon 57 

 58 

Others Present 59 
None 60 

 61 

2.     CITY COUNCIL BUDGET WORK SESSION             6:00 P.M.    62 
Garrett stated that there will be a Truth in Taxation open house in July to help educate residents 63 

on tax increases. She stated that there are a series of noticing requirements that will need to be 64 

met. Garrett stated that the increase will take effect by the November tax bill. 65 

Garrett stated that operating and capital requirements, unfunded mandates, debt requirements and 66 

unseen events are ongoing challenges.  67 

Garrett stated that capital financing is a challenge due to limited resources, stating that the city 68 

has been fortunate in the grants it has received. She stated that a debt and financial feasibility 69 

study may be needed to be done to see where the balance is between pay as you go and debt 70 

issuance.  71 

Garrett stated that the refuse contract has recently been renegotiated to the city’s benefit of a  72 

14 % fee reduction. 73 

 74 

Refuse Services 75 
Garrett stated that the bulk of the changes are due to the change in the refuse contract. Garrett 76 

stated that a rate decrease in refuse is being proposed. Garrett stated that staff is trying to right 77 

size the fund balance and bring it down to appropriate levels. She stated that rates are showing 78 

that they will remain flat for the next four years based on the contract numbers.  Garrett stated 79 

that most cities of our size do not do have a five year budget plan as we do.  Council Member 80 

Monsen stated that the contract was put out to bid five years ago and has been extended by five 81 

years. Harris stated that the city did research comparisons from other cities and stated that overall 82 

the contracts are very comparative. He stated that the value of recycled materials fluctuates but 83 

the city should be able to receive a better deal with the next contract. 84 

 85 

Culinary Water Services 86 
Garrett stated that there are several different revenue streams and expenses within Culinary 87 

Water Services. Garrett stated that operating costs are expected to increase by $50,000. She 88 

stated that capital requirements are expected to increase by $32,000.  89 

Garrett stated that it takes several years to collect the required amount to start a project on the 90 

pay as you go plan. 91 



CC Minutes 5‐21‐13 

Harris stated that the city has 1000 acre ft. of water each year that is at a set price. If the city goes 92 

over, the city will need to negotiate for more water shares at a higher amount. Harris stated that 93 

our culinary water will be reduced once the Well Agreement takes effect and secondary water is 94 

being produced. 95 

 96 

Sanitary Sewer  97 
Garrett stated that additional revenue requirements will be around $57,000.00. Garrett noted that 98 

the intergovernmental STAG grants will not be in the budget for 2014. Garrett stated that the pay 99 

as you go plan will be reevaluated. 100 

 101 

Storm Drain 102 
Garrett stated that additional requirements remain fairly consistent from year to year. 103 

Harris stated that several detention basins are needed around the city.                         104 

 105 

Project Update 106 
Harris stated that the 450 West Project will begin the day after Memorial Day. He stated that the 107 

sewer and water lines are very poor in that area and qualifies for environmental funding.  He 108 

stated that water and sewer lines will be replaced along with curb and sidewalk.  Harris stated 109 

that funds left over will be used on electronic meters and radio replacements. 110 

Gamon stated that many man hours are spent manually reading the meters and then the reads 111 

must be entered manually into the system. Harris stated that it takes 3 days of full staff to read 112 

the meters once the billing department has flagged the accounts as no-reads. 113 

 114 

Utility Rates and Fee Schedule 115 
Garrett stated that gallons used and gallons billed have trended down by around 16.4%. Garrett 116 

stated that the dip in usage was not anticipated. She stated that 2013 is projected with the 3% dip 117 

and will remain flat through 2014. Garrett stated that there are too many variables put into play 118 

to conclude why the decrease happened. Garrett stated that overage is proposed at 14.50% per 119 

thousand gallons for residential. She stated that weighing more on overage is a risk. Garrett 120 

noted that the city averages an $1.74 increase per year. She stated that the city is proposing a 121 

$1.00 increase this year. 122 

Garrett explained the proposed rate and fee schedule. She stated that the combined change is an 123 

increase of $1.00, with a change to overage by .75 cents.  She stated that a decrease in refuse 124 

helps offset the rates. She stated that the rates are driven by consumption. 125 

 126 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 127 
Mayor Mark C. Allen   128 

Council Member Mary Johnston 129 

Council Member Blair Brown 130 

Council Member Robert Jensen 131 

Council Member Scott Monsen 132 

Council Member Val Shupe 133 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 134 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 135 

Recreation Director Aaron Solomon 136 

 137 



CC Minutes 5‐21‐13 

Others Present                                     138 
Charles and Reba Allen, Ulis Gardiner, Ricky Hatch 139 

 140 

3.     ROLL CALL                                              7:00 P.M 141 

 142 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 143 

 144 

5. WELCOME 145 

 146 

6.     CONSENT ITEMS 147 

 148 

6.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 149 

       6.2 APPROVAL OF MAY 7, 2013 MEETING MINUTES  150 
Items 6.1 and 6.2 were approved by general consent. 151 

           152 

 7.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 153 
Weber County Clerk Auditor Ricky Hatch stated that he wanted to inform Council concerning 154 

the June All- by- Mail election for the special election. He stated that every voter in the county 155 

will receive a ballot through the mail. He explained the return process and the controls put in 156 

place to help ensure a secure election. He stated that every ballot will be handled by two or more 157 

people and will remain under lock and key to keep the integrity of the ballot. Several 158 

reconciliation processes will occur. He stated that every signature will be manually verified with 159 

signatures that are stored on file with the County.  160 

 161 

 8.    COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 162 

       COMMENTS 163 
Council Member Brown asked how many ballots will be sent out. Hatch stated there are around 164 

110,000 registered voters. Hatch stated that the voter registration packet will be sent out next 165 

week. Hatch stated that the main push for the by- mail election is possible increase in voter turn- 166 

out. Council Member Monsen stated that the cost seems very high to run an election this way. 167 

Hatch stated that it will cost around $40,000 more in election costs, however cost per ballot will 168 

be at a decrease. Council Member Brown stated that he is opposed to the fact that the property 169 

owner will be footing the bill and a renter will be casting the vote. 170 

  171 

 9.    NEW BUSINESS        172 

                                                                                                      173 

9.1        PRESENTATION: SHERIFF’S OFFICE MONTHLY REPORT 174 
Lt. Burns was unable to attend the meeting. The reports were given to Council in their packet. 175 

Council was instructed to contact Lt. Burns if they have any questions or concerns. 176 

 177 

      9.2  PRESENTATION: RECREATION DEPARTMENT UPDATE 178 
Solomon stated that soccer season has just ended. He stated that baseball and softball are being 179 

run on every field Tuesdays and Thursdays, which is the most it has ever been run.  He stated 180 

that the program will be continued two weeks past Terrace Days. Solomon stated that football 181 

season will begin shortly after baseball season. He stated that a football camp (for 6-9 year olds) 182 

and tackle football will begin in July. 183 



CC Minutes 5‐21‐13 

He stated that the recreational program “Terrace Kids Camp” will begin in July. Solomon stated 184 

that adjustable basketball hoops will be used to help the smaller kids practice. Mayor Allen 185 

suggested that a t-ball camp would be beneficial for the younger kids as well. 186 

 187 

      9.3  MOTION/RESOLUTION 13-10: INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH  188 

           WEBER COUNTY FOR RAMP- ADJUSTABLE BASKETBALL HOOPS 189 
Solomon explained that the city received RAMP grants for the adjustable basketball hoops. He 190 

stated that the city received $3938.00 and is required to match 10 percent of the funds.  Solomon 191 

explained that the hoops are portable and will hang from the existing basketball hoops.  192 

He also noted that the city was awarded $24,000 for a combination tennis/pickle ball court with a 193 

new fence and resurfacing. The city is required to pay 10 percent match of the funds. 194 

 195 

Motion by Council Member Johnston 196 

Seconded by Council Member Monsen 197 

To approve Resolution 13-10 and approve 198 

The interlocal agreement with Weber County for RAMP 199 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 200 

Roll call vote  201 

 202 

      9.4  MOTION/RESOLUTION 13-11: INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH 203 

           WEBER COUNTY FOR RAMP- PICKLE BALL COURTS 204 

 205 

Motion by Council Member Jensen 206 

Seconded by Council Member Johnston 207 

To approve Resolution 13-11 and approve 208 

The interlocal agreement with Weber County for RAMP 209 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 210 

Roll call vote 211 

 212 

 213 

      9.5  MOTION/RESOLUTION 13-09: INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH  214 

           WEBER COUNTY AND WEBER COUNTY CITIES FOR THE UTAH  215 

           POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM GENERAL PERMIT 216 
Harris stated that the program will help the city meet the regulatory requirements of the storm 217 

water standards. Harris stated there are six major areas of requirements that the city will need to 218 

comply with. He stated that the Coalition will help meet three of the qualifications. The Storm 219 

Water Coalition pulls resources of all the communities in the county to help meet requirements. 220 

He stated that the Coalition Program will be a cost of $45,000 total in which the contributions 221 

will be broken down by population size. The city contribution will be $1,764.50 per year,  222 

which is a benefit to the city because it would cost more if the city does it on its own.  Harris 223 

stated that the agreement requires the city to pay the amount by the first of the July and it is put 224 

into an escrow account that will be managed by one of the municipalities. Harris stated that the 225 

Compliance-Go Program will be very helpful to the city, stating that it is a computer based 226 

program that will store information and help the city keep track of projects. Harris stated that 227 

Ogden city has a storm water program in place and are not part of the program. 228 

Harris clarified that four employees have been trained in the city (Harris, Remington, Peterson, 229 



CC Minutes 5‐21‐13 

and Monroe) for site inspections and reviewing pollution prevention plans. He stated that Public 230 

Works will take the lead on civil projects, while Jeff Monroe will take the lead on home 231 

developments to make sure everything is done correctly. 232 

Council Member Jensen inquired if the whole group is held liable if one city is out of 233 

compliance. Harris stated that each entity is separate and there is no liability for any other 234 

member of group in their storm water compliance. 235 

 236 

Motion by Council Member Shupe 237 

Seconded by Council Member Jensen 238 

To approve Resolution 13-09  239 

For the Utah Pollutant Discharge Elimination Systems General Permit 240 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 241 

Roll call vote  242 

 243 

      9.6  MOTION/RESOLUTION 13-12: APPROVAL OF THE SECOND  244 

           ADDENDUM TO THE COMMUNITIES THAT CARE PROGRAM 245 

           INTERLOCAL  246 
Council Member Johnston explained that the finance management will be moved from 247 

Washington Terrace City to Weber Human Services, stating that they are used to handling 248 

different types of grants. She stated that the management is a better fit for handling this type of 249 

grant. She also noted that it was taken into account that the city can receive only so many grants 250 

and having the CTC grant could possibly effect receiving other grants from the Federal 251 

Government. 252 

 253 

Motion by Council Member Johnston 254 

Seconded by Council Member to Jensen 255 

Approve Resolution 13-12 for the approval 256 

Of the second addendum to the 257 

Communities That Care Program Interlocal 258 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 259 

Roll call vote  260 

 261 

 262 

10.      COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 263 

         264 
        *Council Member Brown stated that he appreciates Harris and the experience that  265 

          he brings to the city. 266 

         267 
        *Mayor Allen agreed and stated that the city is very fortunate to have Harris on  268 

         the team.    269 

   270 

11.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 271 
       * Harris stated that he misspoke earlier and clarified that Ogden City is part of the 272 

         Storm Water Coalition and will be contributing $16,000 towards the $45,000. 273 

        * Harris stated that the Rohmer Park Project is almost complete and should be  274 

         finished by the end of the week. 275 



CC Minutes 5‐21‐13 

        *Harris stated that the design for sewer and waterline replacement project on Adams  276 

          Ave. is almost complete and the bid will be put out shortly. 277 

        *Harris stated that the Well #3 well house has been built and the pump has been  278 

          set. The electrical still needs to be completed. He stated that an easement is in  279 

          process right now for the water and electrical lines. 280 

 281 
        Mayor Allen noted that there is a dangerous looking hole at Rohmer Park near  282 

         the access road that looks like there may be sinkage. Harris stated that Public  283 

         Works is waiting on the asphalt to fill the holes with hot mix.  284 

          285 

12.     UPCOMING EVENTS         286 

       Mayo 27th: City offices closed for Memorial Day  287 

       May 30th: Planning Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m. 288 

       June 4th: Budget Work Session 6:00 p.m. 289 

       June 4th: City Council and RDA Meeting 7:00 p.m. 290 

       June 15th: Terrace Day!! 291 

               292 

13.     ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN  293 
Mayor Allen stated that prayers and thoughts go out to the people who have been hit by 294 

tornadoes and storms, stating that we are fortunate to live in an area that does not have 295 

destructive weather. He stated that there is hope for recovery and thoughts go out to those 296 

affected. 297 

Mayor Allen adjourned the meeting at 7:56 p.m. 298 

 299 

 300 

_______________________________     _______________________________ 301 

Date Approved                            City Recorder 302 


